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IndL`pcndent Auditor's Rept)rt

To the Membe`rs (}f Alok li`crro Allo)'s Limited

Re`port on tile Audit o1. the Financial LC`itatcmcii{s

()pillion

Wc  have  audit'ed  the  accompanying  financizil  st.atemcnts  of  ALOK  FERRO   ALLOYS
I,IM['rRI)  (the  "Corppany"),  which  r,cimpi.ise  the  13alancc  Sheet as  at  March  31,  2024,  the
Statement  of Pi.ofit  aiid` Loss  (including  ()thor  Comprclicnsivc  lncom?),  the  Statcmcnt  of
Chaiigcs  in  Equity  and  the  SI.iatcmdrit  (}f Cash  F1()ws  1`or  the  year  ended  on  thzil.  dale  and  z`
sunmar),  of  mat.erial   accounting  policies   and  othc`r  explanatory  ii-tformati(in  (hcreinaftcr
referred to as the .€1inancial stat.emeiits").

1n out. opinion and to  I.hc best of our inft)rmation and according to the explanations given t{j
us,  i..hc  aft),rjsaid   rinanci-al i;tatements  givc> t'he infomiation  required by the  Ccinpanies  Act,
`2()I,3  (th()` .JAct") in tile manner so rcquirecl ancl give a ti:uc-ancl fair  view' in coiifoi.mity wit.h
{hc.  Irtdii[!i   tt+cc(tunting   St!`ndards  prescribed  ur,dei.  section   133   of  the  Act+  read  wit}i  t.hc
Comi)z\nies  (Ind}an  Accounting  Standarcls)  Rules,  2015,  as  amL`ndcd,  ("Ind  ^S")  ancl  ot`hei.
i`.ccounting principles  geiierzilly aci`epl.ed in liidia,  of tl.ie stzite of z`..I.fai.I.s  ()I..` the  Coiripaliy  as  at
March  31,  2024  £`nd  its  profit,  t.otal  comprehensive  income,  chaiiges  in  equity  and  its  c{]sh
flows for the year €`ncled on that date.

B:`Sis 1'(}r ()piiii(.jli

We  con.'.I'uct.cd  our   audi(:  o'l.`  i.hc,  `fir)aricial  stati3l.n`onts  in   accordance  witll  t.hc   Stal]dal-ds   ()1'1
Auditing (.`.SA"s.) speciflcd' `lndcr scetion 143(10) of i.hc Act.  Our responsibilities .under t`iiose
St.andzirds   are   f`ii.thei.   described   in   t.lie   Audit.or's   Kesp{)nsibilities   for   the   /\qudit   of  t`hc

%];:%;:Ices,`[vajtt:]n:£;:t%o:]cect(;:]T=t££fcso,::u:i:'.:);tihcY:i;t:;I:,.Oil:fe(?£:;::;;1:doA`c::,:ntc;:I:s[};afiY]ci]i!2:

`!`t`::::]`],I::!t:°£:tdhL`e;rt`}::thp:::I::':icsaLorfe:i:;"f`;I::natzstdtht::earfur,.ee[sev£:td:°tf,::e:I:]ddL:i:]`¢`:i:i-d:£r:a.r;.:jvd:
i\ilfillecl  oii.r  other  ct.hical  rcsponsibilil.i`es  ill  iiccordancc  with  thcsc  ..-cquireincrit.s  and  the
ICAI'r,  Code  ()f Ethics.  Wc bclicve  thz`.1.. th6  £iudit  evidence  obtaincTd bv  us  is  surficiclil  anci

.   apt)I()priate :,o provide a basis foi. our ftiiclit (tipinion on the financial 8tatcmciits.

i-nformatioiiothertliantl)eFi"inci:ilstzttLime,Iits!tndAuditor'sRcportThcrc.on

Tht;   C.ompziriy's,   Board   c.I.`   I:.j`ii:cctors   is   i.esp()nsiblc   for   the   othei.   in'formatio^ri.   `1`hc   ()thor
infoini..ti(in compi.iscs the ir,`l`oi.mati{m iiicluded in the .B()ard's Repoi.I 'including Annexures I.o
13ofird'... Rep()r`i-, but,does n(>t inclnde t.hc financi:.il statements aiid our auditoi.'s report thei.colt.

Our opinion  on the  fin,ancial  statement.c!.  d()es  not covc-I.  thc;`  other .information  and. we  do  n()t
cxpi.c`ss any form of asslu.ancc. conclus.ii`n thcrco
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In connection with our audit of the financial .statements, our I.esponsibility is t.o read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with  the  financial  statement.s  or  our  lmowledge  obtainecl  during  the  course  of our  audit  or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the woi.k we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to r:,?port that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Management's Responsibilities for th(} Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters  stated in section  134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS  and other
accounting   principles    gcncrally    accepted   in   India.    This   responsibility    also    includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets  of the  Company and for preventing and detecting frauds   and   other
irregularities;   selection       and      application   of  appropriate   accounting   policies;   making
judgments  and  estimates  that  are  reasonable  and  prudent;  and  design,  implementation  and
maintenance  of  adequate  intemal  financial  controls,  that  were  operating  effectively  for
ensuring t.he accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the   financial stater).Tents that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability  to  continue  as  a  going  concern,  disclosing,  as  applicable,  matters  related  to  going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or t.o cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

Tlie Board o±` Dir.cctors  is  also responsible for overseeing the  Company's  financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives  al.+6 to  obtftin reasonable assurance  about whether th`cFJ.financial  statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to  fraud or error,  and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance js a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material  misstatement  when it  exists.  Misstatements  can  arise  from  fraud  or  error  and  are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence t.he economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.~,' I,

As part of an audit in `accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and, maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. W.e also:

•     Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the rinancial statements, whether
due to fraud oi- error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence t.hat is sufficient and
The risk of not. detecting a material missta
one resulting from error,  as fraud may i
misrepresentations, oi. t.he override bl` in froouwhl72

to provide a basis for our opinion.
from fraud is higher than for
)rgery, intentional omissions,



Obtain  an  understanding  of intemal  financial  control  relevant  to  the  audit  in  order  to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)
of the Act, wc are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company
has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

•     Evaluate  the  appropriateness   of  accounting  policies  used  and  the  reasonableness   of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

•     Conclude  on  t.he  appropriateness  of management's  use  of the  going  concern basis  of
accounting  and,  based  on  the  audit  evidence  obtained,  whether  a  material  uncertainty
exists related to  events  or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue  as  a going concern.  If we  conclude that a inaterial uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
finaiicial  statement.s  or,  if such  disclo;ures  are  inadequat.e,  to  modify  our  opinion.  Our
conclusions  are  based  on  the  audit  evidence  obtained  up  to  the  date  of our  auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

•     Evaluate  the  overall  presentation,.  structure  and  cor.`.tent  of  the  financial   statements,
including the  disclosures,  and whet.her the  financial  statements  represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the flnancial statemc;nts tliat, individually or
in aggregate, makes  it. probable that the economic decisions  of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the  fmancial   stat'cments may  be influenced.   We consider quantitative materiality
and  qualitative  factors  in  (i)  planning  the  scope  of our  audit  work  and  in  evaluating  the
results  of our work;  and  (ii)  to  evaluate  the  effect  of any  identified  misstatements  in  the
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,  among other matters,  the
plarmed   scope   a]id   timing   of  the   audit   and   significant   audit   .findings,   including   any
significant defici`.8-ncies in intemal conti.ol that we identify during o`u!. audit.

We also pi.ovide th{)se charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant.  ethical  requirements  regarding  indefi.endence,  and  to  communicate  with  them  all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on OthL`r Legal find Regulat'ory Requiremelits

1.   As required by the Companies  (Auditor's Report)  Order,  2020  (the "Order")  issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure A"
a statement on the matters specified.in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2 .    As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a)   We have sought and obtained all the
of our knowledge and belief were ne

b)   `In  our  opinion,  proper books  of ac
Company so far fi`s it 2ippears from

tffiu££9#8fr

planations which to the best
sos of our audit..

law  have been  kept .by .the
ose books.
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c)  The Balance Sheet, the Statemeht of profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive  Income,  t.he  Cash  Flow  Stateinent  and  Statement  of  Changes  in
Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d)   In  our  opinion,   i.`he   aforesaid  financial   stateme.nts   comply  with  the  Accounting
Standards  specified  under  Section  133  of the  Act,  read  with  Companies  (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

e)    On    the    basis    of   the    written    representations    received    from    the    directors
as    on March 31, 2024 taken on record by t.he Board of Directors, none of the directors
is  disqualified  as  on March 31,  2024 from being appointed as  a director in terms  of
Section 164(2) of t.lic Act.

D     With  respect  to   the   adequacy   of  the   internal   financial   controls   over   financial
reporting of the Company and the operating el.fectiveness  of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in "Annexure 8". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on
the   adequacy   and   operating   effectiveness   of  the   Company's   internal   financial
controls over financizil reporting.

g)    With 1.espe.ct to the other matters to be include,d in the Auditor's Repbrt in accordance
with the-requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as ainended:

h our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its dii.ectors during the year is in
accordance wit.h the provisions o'f section 197 of the Act.

h)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
uS:

i.   The  Company  has  disclosed  the  impact  of pending  litigations..  on  its  financial
positi,ore in its finaucial statements.                                                S   i

ii., The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.There  were no amounts required  to  be  transl-erred,  to  the investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Coqu3any.

t.,+

iv. (a)  The Managemi`nt has represented that', to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no  funds  (which  are  material  either  individually  or  in. the  aggregate)  have
been  advanced  or  loaned. or invested  (eithei.  from borrowed  funds  or  share
premium or any other sources or kind of frmds) by the Company to or in any
other person  or  entity,  including  foreign  entity  ("Intermediaries"),  with  the
understanding., whether    recorded
Intermediary  shall,  whether,
persons  or  eiitities  ideiitifie
the Company ("Ultimate Be
the like on behalf of the Ulti

ng    or    otherwise,    that    the
ctly   lend   or   invest   in   other

hatsoever by or on behalf of
e any guarantee, security or
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(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds (wliich are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
received by the Company from any pe±.son or entity, including foreign entity
("Funding Parties"),  with the understanding,  whether recorded in writing  or
otherwise,  that  the  Company  shall,  whether,  directly  or  indirectly,  lend  or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any marmer whatsoever by or
on  behalf of the  Funding  Party  ("Ultimate  Beneficiaries")  or  provide  any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the. Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c)   Based  on  the  audit  procedures  that  have  bc;en  considered  1-easonable  and
appropriat.c  in  the  circumstances,  nothing  has  coine  to  our  notice  that  has
cinscd  us  t.o  believe  that the representations under sub-clause  (i)  and (ii)  of
Rule   11(e),   as   provided  under   (a)   and   (b)   above,   contain   any  material
misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which lias a feature of
recording audit trail in ER`P software` arid the same has operated throughout the
year for  ftll  relevant transactions  recorded  in itlie  software.  Further,  during  the
course  of our audit we  did not  come  acro.f;s  any  instance  of audit trail feature
being tampered wit.h.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable
fi.om  April  1,  '2023,  reporting  under  Rule  11(g)  of the  Companies  `(Audit  and
Auditors)   Rules,   2014   on   preservation   of  audit   trail   as   per   the   statutory
requirements  for record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024.

Raipur,  io`'` May, 2024

UDIN: 24076961BKAPBX4004
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ANNEXURE `A' T0 THE INDEPIENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred   to   in   paragraph   1   under   `Report   on   Otlier   Legal   and   Regulatory
Requirements'  section  of ()ur report to  the Members  of Alok Ferro  Alloys  Limited  of
even date)

To  the  best  of our  information  and  according  to  the  explanations  provided  to  us  by  the
Company and the books o.f account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit,
we state that:

i.       In respect of the company's property, Plant and Equipment and htangible Assets:

(a)           (A)  The  Company. has  inaintained  proper  records  showing  full  particulars,
including    quantitative    details    and   situation    of   Property,    Plant    and
Equipment.

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

(b)        The  Company  has  a  program  of physical  verification  of Property,  Plant  and
Equipment to cover all the assets once every three years which, in our opinion,
is  reasonable  having regard to  the  size  of the  Company  and the  nature  of its
assets. Pursuant to the program, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were due
for verification during the year and were physically verified by the Management
during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us, no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c)        Based on our examination of the property tax receipts  and lease agreement for
land  on  which  building  is  constructed,  registered  sale  deed  /  transfer  deed  /
conveyance  deed  provided  to  us3  we  report  that,  the  title  in  respect  of self-
constructed   buildings   and   title   deeds   of  all   other   immovable   properties,
disclosed   in   the   financial   statements   included   under   Property,   Plant   and
Equipment are held in the flame of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

(d)        The  company lias  not revalued  ahy  of its  property,  Plant  and Equipment.  and
intangible assets during the year.

(e)        No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company  as  ar  March  31,  2024  for  holding  any  benami  property  under  the
Benapi  Transactions  (Prohibition)  Act,  1988  (as  amended  in  2016)  and rules
mad£., thereunder.                                                                                 .i...

ii.         (a)  As explained to us, the phy'sical.verification of inventories has been conducted at
reasonable  intervals  by  the  management  dui.ing  the  year.  In  our  opinion,  t`he
frequency   of   the   ve.rificatiori   is   reasonable.   The   discrepancies   noticed   on
verification  between  the  physical  stocks  and the  book  records  were  not  more
than  100/o  or  more  in  t.he  aggregate  of each  class  of inventory  and  have  been
properly dealt with in the bogks ofaccount.                                                     i

(b)  Based  on  the  audit  procedure  and  on  an  overall  examination  of  financial
statements, we are of the opinion that the stock statements and quarterly results
filed by the company, in respect of working capital loan availed from banks, are
in agi.Cement with the book's of account of the company.

iii.         The   Company   has   made   investments   in,   companies,   firms,   Limited   Liability
Partnerships,   and  gi.anted  unsecured  loans  to  other  parties,  during  the  year,  in
respect of which:
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1V.

V.

V1.

vii.

(a)     The Company has not I)rovided art.y loans or advances  in the nature of loans
and  provided  security to  subsidiary,  associates  or joint ventures. or any  other
entity during. the year, and hence reporting under clause 3(iii)(a) '(A)  & (8) of
the Order is not applicable

a)      In  our  opinion,  the  investments  made  during t.he  year  are,  prima  facie,  not
prejudicial to the Company' s interest.

(c)    As the company has not gi.anted any loans during the year or outstanding at the
beginning  of t.he  year,  therefore reporting under  clause  3(iii)(c)  to  ®  of the
Order is not. applicable.

The  Company  has  complied .with  the  provisions  of Sections  185  and  186  of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees
and securities pi.ovided, as applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are  deemed to be
deposits. IIence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

We  have  broadly  reviewed  t`he  books  of account  maintained  by  the  company
pursuant to  the  rules  made  by I.he  Central  Government  for the  maintenance  of
cost  records  under  section  148(I)  of the  Companies  Act,  2013,  in  respect  of
Company's products  to which the said rules  are made applicable  and ai.e of the
opinion that, prima facie,  the prescribed accounts  and records,  have ibeen made
and  maintained.  We  have,  however,  not  made  a  detailed  examination  of the
records.

In respect of statut.ory dues:

(a)    In    our    opinion,.    the    Company    has    been    regular    in    depositing
undisputed  statutory  dues,  including  Goods   and  Services  tax,  Provident
Fund,  Employees.'   State  Insurance,  Income  Tax,  Cess  and  other  material
statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

There were no undisput€d amounts payable in respect of Goods and Sei.vices
tax,  Provident  Fund,  Einployees'  State  Insurance,  hcome  Tax,  Cess  and
otbgr material statutory dues in arrears as  at March 3 }S,¢,2024 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b)     Detalls  of statutory dues referrecl to  in sub-clause (a)  above which have not
been deposited as on March 31, 2024 on account of disputes are given below:

rTthe Nziture of Dues Amount Forum          where
te Rs. dispute is pending
I  Excise  Act, Demand raised of Cenvat 5.66*I Addl.     .Coinmissioner,

credit          availed'          on Central       Ex cise        &
Inputs/Capital .Goods  for Service    Tax,    Raipur
the pe.riod from Jen 2008toNov2008 (C.G.)

c    Tax    Act, D cma:id          for          th e I                                   1.56 Commissioner             of
Assessment   Year   2010-11 Income  Tax  (Appeal),

Raipur
e    Tax    Act, D cmand          for          the 1.21 Rectification

Asses.iment  Year  2a`se16 /•,E! Application   filed  withAssessingofficer.

sgarh    Upkar •..---::-: -         .-`=-if,!'Qst:EiR `,49 Supreme Court
ry_am  I 9 8 1 o.00!t72C   aofFlt RIrmr      *;cAVATTrsGARH^®
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viii.        There, were no transactions relating to previously uurecoi.ded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act,1961  (43  of 1.961).

1X.

X.

X1..

(a)  In our opinion and according to the infomiation aiid explanations given to us, the
company has not defaulted in repaymerty of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment  of interest  thereon  to  any  lender  and  hence  reporting  under  clause
`3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b)  The Company has not been declared willful  defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(c)   On  an  overall  examination  of the  financial  statements  of the  Company,  the
Company has not taker.`. ariy term loan during the year, therefore, the reporting
under. `clause 3(ix)(c) of the.Order is not applicable.

(d)  On  an  overall  examination  of the financial  statements  of the  Company,  funds
raised on short-term basis.have, prima facie, not been used during the year for
long-term purposes by the Coriipany.

(e) .On  an  overall  examination  ol- the  financial  statements  of the  Company,  the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its Subsidiaries.

®   The Company has not raised loans during tlie year on the pledge of securities held
in  its  subsidiaries, joint ventures  or associate companies  and hence reporting on
clause 3(ix)(I) df the Ordei. is not applicable.

(a) The  Company has  not raised moneys  by way of initial public  offer or further
public  offer  (including  debt  instruinents)  during the  year  and hence  reporting
under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applic,able.

(b) During the year, the Comp;ny has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly dr c;ptionally) arid
hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) No  fraud by  the  Company  and  no  material  fraud  on  the  Company  has  been
noticed  or report.ed during the year.                                           .J-;'`i

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section  143  of the Companies Act has been
filed  in  Form  ADT-4  as  prescribed  under  nile  13  of Companies  (Audit  and
Auditors)  Rules,  2014  with the  Central  Government,  during the year and upto
the date of this repolf.

(c)  In  our  opinion  and based  on  (,jur exaniination,  the  company  is  not requii.ed  to
have vigil mechanism (whistle bl.()Wer)  as per the provisions  of the  Coinpanies
Act,   2013.      Hence,   reporting  under  clailse   3(xi)   (c)   of  the   Order  is   not
applicable.

xii.        The company is not a Nidhi company and hence reporting under. clause (xii) of the
Order 'is not applicable.

xiii.      In our opi`nion, the company is.in compliance with section 188 of the companies Act,
2013 with respect to applicable transacti related parties and the details of

XIV.

related party transactions have been
by the applicable Indian Accounting

In our opinion and based .on our ex
intemal  audit  system  as  per  the
reporting under claL-ise 3(xiv) (a)

s  of the

nancial statements as required

any is not required to have
panies  Act,  2013.    Hence,

llot. appli'cable.



XV.

XV1.

'xvii.

XV111

XIX.

XX.

h  our  opinion  during the  year the  Company  has  not  entered  into  any non-cash
transactions wit.h  its  directors  or persoris  connected with its  directors.   and hence
provisions  of section  192  of the  Compapies  Act,  2013  are  not  applicable  to  the
Company.

(a)   In our opinion, the Comp:my is not required to be registered under section 45-
IA  of the  Reserve  Bank  of hdia  Act,  1934.  I-Ience,  reporting  under  clause
3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

(b)    In  our  opinion,  there  is  no  core  investment  company  within  the  Group  (as
defined in the  Core  nivestment  Companies  (Reserve  Bank)  Directions,  2016)
and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is iiot applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our
audit and also in the immediai.ely preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the
year.

On  the. basis  of the  financial`' ratios,  ageing  and` expected  dates  of realisation  of
financial    assets    and    pays.lent    of    financial    liabilities,     other    information
accompanying   the   financial   statements   and   our  lmowlcdge   of  the   Board   of
Director.s  and  Management  plans  and  based  on  our  examination  of the  evid'ence
supporting the assumptions, r}o.thing has.come to  our attention, which causes us to
believe  t.hat  any  material  uncertainty  exists  as  on  the  date  of the  audit  report
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date
of balance  sheet  as  and when they fall due witliin a pet.iod  of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, howe.vcr, state.that. this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up  to  the  date  of the  audit  report  and  we  neither  give  any  guarantee  nor  any

:a:::adnact:,t#]a;[e|j:1:s;:;££aers;:a`]#thdeu%:it:;:;£sera;:£££::ethyeeyarfafi:.}°dmu:I.]ebalance

There  are no unspent amounts  towards  Corporate  Social Responsibility  (CSR)  jn
accordance with Section  135  of the  said Act.  Accoi.dingly, reporting under clause
3(xx)(a-) land (b) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

Raipur,10tl` May, 2024

UDIN: 24076961 BIIAPBX4004
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Annexure -8 to the Independclit Auditors' Report

Report on the Internal Financial Coiitrols  Over Financial Reporting  under Clause (i)  of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the intemal financial conti.ols over fiiiancial reporting of Alok Ferro Alloys Limited
(the "Company") as of 31 March 2024 in c`;njunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management.'s Responsibility I.or Internal Finanr,ial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential compoiicnts of internal control stated in the Guidarice Note on Audit of Intemal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (`ICAI').
These  r.esponsibilities  include  the  design,   implementation  and  maintenance  of  adequate  intemal
financial contro.1s that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company' s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation ofreliable financial information., as required under the Companies Act, 2013 .

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsit?ility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on oui. audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of internal Financial Contr()ls  over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note")  and the Standards on
Auditing,  issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under-section  143(10)  of the Companies Act,
2013j to the extent.applicable to an audit of intemal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Intemal  Financial  Controls  and,  both  issue.d by the  ICAI.  Those  Standards  and  the  Guidance  Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements alld plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate intemal financial controls over financial  reporting was  established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidcncc about the adequacy of the intcmal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial  controls  over  financial reporting included  obtaining  an understanding of intcmal  financial
controls  over financial reporting,  assessirig the risk that a material weakness  exists,  and testing  and
evaluating the desigri and operating effectiveness  of internal control based  on the assessed risk.  The
procedures selectcd``dcpend on tlre auditor's judgment, including the assessrieht of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or erroi..

We believe that the a`Lidit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's intemal fin;ncial controls system over financial reporting.

Meanirig of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
•`+,t  Li.tsI`2,Sfa`                   I'                                                                                                         A                                                              '`.        '.`   r    'P-                .xp`#.Ail ,.,.;`.

A  company's  intemal  financial  colitrol  over  rinancial  reporting  is  a  process  designed  to  provide
rcasonablc  assurance  regarding the rcliabildy  of financial reporting  and  the preparation  of financial
statements  for  extemal  purpt]ses  in  acct)rdance  with  generally  accepted  accounting  principles.  A
company's internal financial coiitrol over financial reporting includes tliose policies and procedures that

(i) pertain to  the maintenance  of records  that.,  in rcasonablc  detail,  accurately and .fairly reflect the
transactions  and  dispositions  of the  assets  of the ,comp`any;  (2)  provide  reasonable  assurance  that
transactions are recorded as necessary to pc

generally accepted accounting principles, a
made  only in accordance with  authoriz€

provide  reasonable  assurance  regarding
use,   or  dispositioii  ol`  the   company's
statements.

n of financial statements in accordance with
expenditures of the company are being
and directors  of the  company;  and (3)

ctection  o±- Unauthorised  acquisition,
a  mziterial`  effect   on  the'  financial



Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Finflncial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper.management override of controls, material misstatements due to
errororfraudmayoccurandnotbedetected:Also,projectionsofanyevaluationoftheintemalfinancial
controls over financial reporting to future pei.iods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

h our opinion,  to  the best  of our  information  and  according  to  the  explanations  given to  us,  the
Company has,  in all material respects,  an adequate intemal financial  controls  system  over  financial
reporting and such .internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
31  March  2024,  based  on  the  intemal  control  over  financial  reporting  criteria  established  by  the
Company  considering  the  essential  components  of internal  control  stated  in  the  Guidance Note  on
Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For.Opsinghania & Co.

Raipur,  loth May, 2024

UDIN: 24076961BRAPBX4004



ALOK FERRO ALLOYS LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024
Particulars

ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property,  Plant and Equipment
(b) Capital work-in-progress
(c) Other intangible assets
(d) Financial a§set§

- Investments
- Other financial assets

(e) Non-current tax assets
(f) Other non-current assets

Current assets
(a)  Inventories
(b) Financial assets

(i)  Trade Receivables
(ii)  Cash and cash equivalents
(iii)  Bank balances other than Cash and cash

equivalents mentioned above
(v) Other Financial Assets

(c) Current tax assets
(d) Other current assets

TOTAL
EQUITY AND  LIABILITIES
Eauitv
(a) Equity share capital
(b) Other equity

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a)  Financial  Liabilitie.s

(i)  Borrowings
(b) Provisions
(c)  Deferred tax liabilities (Net)

Current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities
(i)    Borrowings
(ii)  Trade Payabl6s

-Outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises
-Outstanding dues to creditors other than micro

and small enterprises

(iii)   Other Financial  Liabilities
(b)  Other current liabilities
(c) Provisions

TOTAL

Summary of significant accountiiig policies

Notes

4`
5
6

7
8

9

13

2.1

31.03.2024                         31.03.2023
= in Lacs

3,885.81
154.06

1,01

18.167.99
248.30

97.31
11.00

¥ in Lacs

3,497.67

2.09

9,825.94
274.54

21.68

13,621

6,353.04

533.66
52.46

41.56
2.86

22.14
1,046.39

3,681.21

266.48
303.36

231.94
2.86

75.66
1,285.79

8,052.11

617.59                             19 469.22

478.61
22,936.55

478.61
15,425.17

23,415.16 15,903.78

77.57
46.02

2,354.89

22.07
42.05

1,286.65

2,478.48 1,350.77

2,309.45

1 1 .45

1,944.87
70.32

380.40
7.46`

1,031.79

3.88

586.13
63.87

522.14
6.86

4,723.95 2,214.67

30.617.59                            19,469.22

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For Opsinghania & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Alok Ferro Alloys Limited-i=ue` ` `
Director

DIN  :  00603401



ALOK FERRO ALLOYS  LIMITED
Statement of Profit & Loss for the ear ended 31st March

Notes 2023-24                      2022-23
Kin Lacs                             tin Lacs

INCOME
Revenue from operations
Other Income

TOTAL REVENUE (I)

EXPENDITURE
Cost of raw material and component consumed
Purchase of Traded Goods
Trading Purchase

(Increase)/Decrease in inventories of finished goods
Employees benefits expenses
Finance costs

Depreciation and amo.rtization

Other Expenses
TOTAL EXPENDITURE (11)

Profitl(Ioss) before tax
Tax expenses

Current tax

Deferred Tax

Total tax expenses

23

Profit/(loss) for the year

Other Comprehensive Income
A (i) Items that will not be reclas.sified to profit or loss

Remeasurements gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans

Income tax relating to items that will  not be reclassified to profit or loss

a (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Fair value of financial assets

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Total Other Comprehensive Income, net of tax

Total Comprehensive Income for the period Comprising Profit/(Loss)
and Other Comprehensive Income for the period)

Earnings per equity share [nominal value of share @ € 10/          29

(31st March,2023" E 10)I
Basic
Diluted

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

9,620.89
385.25

10,006.14

6,758.36

(594.78)
692.29

208.86

214.33

2,839.31

6.911.68

385.29

7,296.97

3,639.36
494.90

1,108.15

576.07

97.09

137.20

1,123.30

10,118.37

(112.23)

(46.96)

(46.96)

7,176.07

120.90

1.70

(0.43)

8,690.15

(1,114.78)

7,576.66

1.21

(0.30)

(53.12)

(69.65)

(121.86)

7,511.39

(1.36)

(1.36)

(39.48)

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements.



ALOK FERRO ALLOYS LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flow for the ear ended 31st March, 2024

2024                                     2023
€ in Lacs                           € in Laos

Cash Flow from operating activities
Profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations
Non-cash adjustment i.o reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows

Depreciation/amortization on continuing  operation

(Profit)/Loss on Sale of property, plant & equipment
(Profit)/Loss on Sale of short term Investment
Provision for gratuity

Interest Expenses
Interest Income
Dividend Income
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES
Movements in working capital :
Increase/(decrease)
Increase/(decrease)
Increase/(decrease)
Decrease/(increase)
Decrease/(increase)
Decrease/(increase)
Decrease/ increase

in trade payables
in other financial  liabilities

in  other current liabilities
in trade receivables
in inventories
jn other financial assets
in other current assets

(112.23)

214.33

(2.46)

6.27
208.86
(32.62)

120.90

137.20
35.41

(32.39)
7.39

97.09

(43.03)
179.62

201.28

1,366.31
6.45

(141.74)

(267.18)
(2,671.83)

4.70
239.40

142.95

(1,049.33)
(0.34)

(86,69)
(124.12)
798.49

32.92
127.08

Cash generated from/(used in ) operations
Direct taxes net of refunds

(1,262.61)                                   (159.04)

Net Cash flow from/ |Ised in a ctivitie s                                                  A 1 ,284.75 239.61
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property. plant & equipment including capital work in prcigress
Proceeds from sale of property,plant and equipment
Purchase of long-term Investments
Proceeds from Sale c)f long term Investments
Investment in fixed deposits with maturity for more than 3 to 12 months
Interest received
Dividends received

(806.98)
42.99

348.11
211.92

32.62
80.89

(1,760.98)
149.96

(534.99)
704.46
211.25

43.03
179.62

Net cash flow from/ used in investin activities 1,007.65
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds /. (Repayment) from long-term borrowings
Proceeds / (Repayment)  from short-term borrowings
Interest

56.58
1,276.58

208.86

(35.79)
771.75

Net cash flow from/ used in financin activitie.s                                                       C 1,124.30                                     638.87
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN  CASH  & CASH  EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C)
Cash and Cash E uivalents at the be

(250.90)                                 (608.39)
303.36                                     911.75

Casli and Cash E uivalents at the end of the ear                                                                                                     52.46 303.36

Notes to the cash flow statement
1. Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand

With banks- on current account

on OD account,„

1.30

51.16

52.46                                   303.36
2. The  above Cash  Flow Statement has  been prepared
AS - 7) - Statement of Cash Flow.

under the  "Indirect Method"  as  set out  in  the  Indian Accounting  Standard  (Ind

3.  Reconciliation  between  opening  &  closing  balances  in  the  Balance  Sheet for  liabilities  arising  from  financial  activities  due  to  cash
flows and  non-cash flow changes.

Particulars As at 01.04.2023 Cash flow Non Cash changes As at 31.03.2024
Proceeds Repayments Classification

Long-Term  Borro.vyings 45.89 (56,58) (24.90) 77.57
Short-Term  Borrowings 1,007.97 1,276.58 - 24.90 2,309.45

Total 1'053.86 1,276.58 (56.58) 2,387.02
4. Figures in the bracket represents cash outflow.

As per our report of even date
For Opslnghanla & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Alok Ferro AIIoys Limited

DIN:  02618948

c-he-
(Y. C. Rao)

Director
DIN  :  00603401



ALOK FERRO ALLOYS LIMITED
Statement of changes in Equity

Eauitv Share Caoital € in Lacs

Partlculars Balance. as at Changes ln F{estated Changes ln the Balance as at
01.04.2022 Equity Share balance at the equity share 31.03.2023

Capital due to beginnlng of capital during

prior perioderrors the respectivereporting the year

Eauitv Share CaDital 478.61 478.61 478.61

Particulars Balance a§ at Changes ln Restated Changes ln the Balance as at
01.04.2023 Equity Share balance at the equity share 31.03.2024

Capital due to beginning of capital during

prior perioderrors the respectivereporting the year

Eciuitv Share Capital 478.61 478.61 478.61

Other Equity
Particulars Other Eauitv € in Lacs

Reserves and Surplus OtherComprehensiveIncome

Total OtherEquity

Securities Retained

EquityInstrumentsthroughOther

Premium* Earnings" ComprehensiveIncome(NetofTax\***

Balance as of  April 1. 2022 1,828.41 3,069.68 10,566.55 15,464.65

Acturial Gain/Loss on employee benefit (Net of Tax) 0.90 0.90

Equity Instruments thrc)ugh Other Comprehensive Income (Net of (122.77) (122.77)

Tax)
Profit/(loss) for the period 82.38 82.38

Balance as on March 31   2023 1.828.41 3.070.59 10.526.17 15.425.17

Particulars Other Ecluitv € in Laos

Reserves and Surplus OtherComprehensiveIncome

Total OtherEquity

Securities Retained

EquityInstrumentsthroughOther

Premium Earnings ComprehensiveIncome(NetofTax\

Balance as of  April 1, 2023 1,828.41 3,070.59 10.526.17 15,425.17

Acturial Gain/Loss on employee benefit (Net of Tax) 1.27 - 1.27

Equity Instruments throuah Other Comprehensive Income (Net of - - 7 .5n 5 .%J 7 .Sit 5 .SJ
Profit/(loss) for the peric)d (65.25) (65.25)

Balance as on March 31. 2024 1.828.41 3.006.60 18.101.54 22.936.55

Note:
*  Securities  Premium  is  used  to  record  the  premium  received  on  issue  of shares.  It  is  to  be  utilised  in  accordance  with  the  provisions  of

Companies Act, 2013.

**  Retained  earnings  are  the  profits  and  gains  that  the  Company  has  earned  till  date  less  any  transfer to  General  Reserve.  dividends  or

other distributions made to Shareholders.
***   The   cumulative   gains   and   losses   arising   from   fair  value   changes   of  equity   investments   measured   at  fair   value   through   other

comprehensive income are recognis.ed in fair value of financial assets. The balance of the reserve represents such changes recognised net
of amounts reclassified to retained earnings on disposal of such investments.

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date.

For OP Singhania & Co

Membership 'No.:  076961

Place : Raipur
Date   :  10.05.2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Alok Ferro Alloys Limited

DIN:  02618948

c-ue.`
(Y. C.  Rao)

Director

DIN .:  00603401



ALOK FERRO ALLOYS  LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the ended 31st March, 2024

1.    Corporate Information
Alok  Ferro  Alloys   Limited   (the  company)   is   a  public  company  domiciled   in   India  and   incorporated   under  the

provisions of the Companies Act,1956. The corripany is  mainly engaged  in  manufacturing  of Ferro Alloys  Products
and captive power generation.

The addresses of its registered office and principal place of business are disclc)sed in the introduction to the annual
report.

The   financial  statements  were  approved  for  issue  in  accordance  with  a  resolution  of the  directors  on  10th  May
2024.

2.    MATERIALACCOuNTING POLICIES
2.1  Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements  are prepared  in accordance with  Indian Accounting  Standards  (lnd AS)  ncitified  under the
Companies  (Indian  Accounting  Standards)   Rules,2015.  For  all  periods  upto  and  including  the  year  ended  31st
March  2021,  the  company  prepared  its  financial  statements  in  accordance  with  accounting  standards  notified  as
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 and considered as "Previous GAAP".

These financial statements for the year ended 31st March.2023 are the Company's first lnd AS standalone financial
statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities
which have been measured at fair value:

- Defined benefit plans - plan assets
- Certain financial assets and liabilities

Company's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (€), which is also its functional currency.

The Company has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going concern.

2.2  Summary of material accounting policies
a)  Current-non-current classification

All  assets  and  liabmties  have  been  classified  as  current  or  non-current  as  per the  Company's  nc>rmal  operating
cycle   and   other   criteria   set   out   in   the   Schedule   Ill   to   the   Companies   Act,   2013.   Ba§`ed   on   the   nature   of
manufacturing  activity  and  the  time  between  the  acquisitic)n  of assets  for  processing  and  their  realization  in  cash
and  cash  equivalents,  the  Company  has  ascertained  its  operating  cycle  for the  purpose  of  current -  non  current
classification of assets and liabilities as 12 months for its products.
All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.
Assets
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(a) it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the company's normal operating cycle;
(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
(c) it is expected to be realised within  12 months after the reporting date: or
(d) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date.

Current assets include the current portion of nc]n-current financial assets.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the follcjwing criteria:

(a) it is expected to be settled in the company's normal ciperating cycle;
(b) it is held primarily fc>r the purpose of being traded;
(c) it is due to be settled within 12 mc]nths after the reporting date; or
(d) the company does not have an  unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the  reporting  date.  Terms  of a  liability that  could,  at the  option  of the  counterparty,  result  in  its  settlement  by the
issue of equity  instruments do not affect its classification.
Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.



ALOK FERRO ALLOYS  LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

b)  Fair Value Measurement
Fair value is the  price that would  be received to sell  an  asset or paid to transfer a  liability in an  orderly transaction
between  market  participants  at the  measurement  date.  Normally  at  initial  recognition,  the  transaction  price  is  the
best evidence of fair value.

However,  when  the  Company determines  that transaction  price  does  not represent the fair value,  it uses  inter-alia
valuation  techniques  that  are  appropriate  in  the  circumstances  and  for  which  sufficient  data  are  available  to
measure  fair  value,  maximising  the  use  of  relevant  observable  inputs  and  minimising  the  use  of  unobservable
inputs.

All  financial  assets  and  financial  liabilities  for which  fair value  is  measured  or disclosed  in  the  financial  statements
are  categorised  within  the  fair  value  hierarchy.   This   categorisation   is   based  on  the  lowest  level   input  that  is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1  - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - Valuation  techniques  for which the  lowest level  input that is  significant to  the  fair value  measurement is
directly or indirectly observable
Level  3 - Valuation  techniques  for which the  lowest level  input that  is  significant to the  fair value  measurement is
unobservable

Financial  assets   and  financial   liabilities   that  are   recognised   at  fair  value   on   a   recurring   basis,   the   Company
determines whether transfers  have  occurred  between levels in the hierarchy by re- assessing  categorisation  at the
end of each reporting period.

c)  Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
On transition to  lnd AS, the Company has elected {o continue with the carrying value of all of its property,  plant and
equipment recognised as at April  1, 2021,  measured as per the previous GAAP,  and  use that carrying value as the
deemed cost of such property, plant and equipment.

An item of PPE is  recognized as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment.is measured at :
-its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and
raha+oe

- any costs  directly attributable to  bringing  the asset to the  location  and  condition  necessary for it to  be capable  of

operating in the manner intended by management.
- the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and  removing the item and  restoring the  site on which  it is  located,

the obligation which is to be incurred either when the item is acquired or as a consequence of having used the item
during a particular period for purpcjses other than to produce inventories during that period.

- Expenditure incurred on renovation and  modernization  of PPE on completion of the originally estimated useful life

resulting  in  increased  life  and/or  efficiency  cjf an  existing  asset,  is  added  to  the  cost  of the  related  asset.  In  the
carrying  amount of an  item  of PPE,  the  cost of replacing  the  part of such  an  item  is  reccignized when that cc]st is
incurred if the recognition crite.ria are met.  The carrying  amount of those parts that are replaced  is derecognized in
accordance with the derecognition principles.

-  After  initial  recognition,   PPE    is  carried  at  cost  less  accumulated  depreciation/amortization  and   accumulated

impairment lc>sses,  if any.

-  Spare  parts  procured  along  with  the  Plant  &  Ma?hinery  or subsequently which  meet the  recognition  criteria  are

capitalized  and  added  in  the  carrying  amount  of  such  item.  The  carrying  amount  of those  spare  parts  that  are
replaced  is  derecognized when  no  future  economic  benefits  are  expected  from  their use  or upon  disposal.  Other
machinery spares are treated as ustores & spares" forming part of the inventory.

-  lf  the  cost  of  the  replaced  part  or  earlier  inspection  is  not  available,. the  estimated  cost  of  similar  new  parts/

inspection is  used  as  an  indication  of what the cost of the  existing  part/ inspection  component was when the  item
was acquired or inspection carried out.

- An item  of property,  plant and  equipment is  derecognized upon disposal or when  no future economic benefits are

expected  from  its   use  gr  disposal.  Any  gain  or  loss   arising   on  derecctgnition   of  the   asset  (calculated  as  the

asset)  is included in the Statement of



ALOK FERRO ALLOYS  LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the ear ended 31st March, 2024

d)  Capital work in progress
Expenditure  inourred  on  assets  under  construction  ¢ncluding  a  project)  is  carried  at  cost  under  Capital  Work  in
Progress.  Such  costs  comprises  purchase  price  of  asset  including  import  duties  and  nori-refundable  taxes  after
deducing trade  discounts  and  rebates  and  costs  that  are  directly  attributable to  bringing  the  asset to  the  location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management

Cost directly attributable to projects under construction include costs of employee benefits, expenditure in relation to
survey  and  investigation  activities  of the  projects,  cost  of  site  preparation,  initial  delivery  and  handling  charges,
installation  and  assembly  costs,  professional fees,  expenditure  on  malntenance  and  up-gradation  eto.  of common
public facilities, depreciation on assets used in construction Of project, interest during construction and other costs if
attributable  to   construction   of  projects.   Such   costs   are   accumulated   under  "Capital  works   in   progress"   and
subsequenfty  auocated  on  systematic  basis  over  major  assets,  other  than  land  and  infrastructure  facilities,  on
commissioninq of proiects.

Capital  Expenditure  incurred Tor  creation  of  facilities,  Over  which  the  Ctompany  does  not  have  confrol  but  the
creation of which is essential principally for construction of the project is capitalized and carried under "Capital work
in  progress"  and  subsequentry allocated on   systematic basis  over major assets,  other than  land  and  infrastructure
facilities,  on commissioning  of projects,  keeping in view the "attributability" and the "Unit of Measure" concepts in lnd
AS  16-"Property,  Plant  &  Equipmentn.  Expenditure  of  such  nature  incurred  after  completion  of  the  project  is
charaed to Statement of Profit and Loss.

e)  Leases
Leases  are classified  as finance  leases whenever the terms  of the lease,  transfers substantially all the  risks  and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. AIl other leases are classified as operating leases.

Leased assets
Assets  held  under  finance  leases  are  initiatry  recognised  as  assets  of  the  Company  at  their  fair  value  at  the
inception of the lease or, if lower,  at the  present  value of the  minimum lease  payments. The conesponding  liability
to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments  are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve
a constant rate of interest on the remalning balance of the liabirty. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in
Statement  of  Profit  and  Loss,  unless  they  are  directly  attributable  to  qualifying  assets,  in  which  case  they  are
capitalized. Contingent  rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are inoumed.

A leased asset is depreciated  over the useful life of the asset  However, if there is no  reasoriable certainty that the
Company  will  obtain  ownership  by  the  end  of  the  lease  term,  the  asset  is  depreciated  over  the  shorter  of  the
estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating  lease  payments   are  recognised  as  an  expense  in the  Statement of  Profit and  Loss  on  a  straight-line
basis  over the  lease term  except where  anclther  systematic basis  is  more  representative  of time  pattern  in which
economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

f)  Revenue recognition
A. Reveniie from contract with customers
The Company recognises revenue when control over the promised goods or services is transferred to the oustomer
at an  amount that reflects  the  consideration  to which  the  Ctompany  expects  to  be  entitled  in  exchange  for those
goods  or services. The  Company has  generally concluded that it is the principal  in its  revenue  arrangements  as  it
typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to the oustomer.

Revenue  is  adjusted  for  variable  consideration  such  as  discounts,  rebates,  refunds,  credits,  price  concessions,
incentives, or other similar items in a contract when they are highly probable to be provided. The amount of revenue
excludes any amount collected on behalf of third parties.

The Company recognises revenue generaHy at the point in time when the products are delivered to ous{omer or
when it is delivered to a carrier for export sale. which is when the control over product is transferred to the
oustomer.

Revenue from sale of by products are included in revenue.
Contract Balances
Contract Assets :
A contract asset is  the  right to  consideration  in  exchange for goods  or services transferred to the  oustomer.  If the
Company  performs  by  transferring  goods  or  services  to  a  oustomer  before  the  oustomer  pays  consideration  or
before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration.

Trade Receivables:
A receivable is  recognised when the goods  are deliver
right  to  receive  cash  or  other  financial  assets  (i.e.,
consideration is due). ICA.1.I.B.No.002112

vypuRJstiio`di

nt that it has  an unconditional contractual
ime  is  required  before  payment  of the



ALOK FERRO ALLOYS LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the ear ended 31st March, 2024

•           Contract Liabilities:
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amc>unt of consideration i§ due) from the customer.  If a customer pays consideration before the
Company transfers  goods  or services to the customer,  a contract liability is  recognised when the payment is  made
or the  payment  is  due  (whichever  is  earlier).  Contract  liabilities  are  recognised  as  revenue  when  the  Company
performs under the contract including Advance received from Customer.

Refund Liabilities:
A  refund  liability  is  the  obligation  to  refund  some  or  all  of  the  consid.eration  received   (or  receivable)  from  the
customer  and  is  measured  at  the  amount  the  Company  ultimately  expects  it will  have  to  return  to  the  customer
including volume rebates and discounts. The Company updates its estimates of refund liabilities at the end  of each
reporting  period.

8. Exports Benefits:
Benefits  arises  on exports  of goods  like export incentives  are recognized on accrual  basis when  exports  sales are
recognized.
'C. Interest Income

Interest income from  a financial  asset is  recognised when  it is  probable that the  economic benefits will flow to the
Company  and  the  amount  of  income  can  be  measured  reliably.  Interest  income  is  accrued  on  a  time  basis,  by
reference  to  the  principal  outstanding  and  at  the  effective  interest  rate  applicable,  which  is  the  rate  that  exactly
discounts estimated future cash  receipts through the expected  life of the financial asset to that asset's  net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

D. Dividends
Revenue  is  recognised  when  the  company's  right  to  receive  payment  is  established,  which  is  generally  when
shareholders approve the dividend.

g)  Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment
Depreciation on Property,  Plant & Equipment is  provided on Straight Line  Method  based on  estimated useful life of
the assets which is same as envisaged in schedule 11 of the Companies Act. 2013.

Depreciation  on  additions to /deductions from  Property,  Plant &  Equipment during  the year is charged  on  pro-rata
basis from / up to the date on which the asset is available for use / disposal.

The  residual values,  useful  lives  and  method  of depreciation  of property,  plant and  equipment is  reviewed  at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Where  the  life  and  / or  efficiency  of an  asset  is  increased  due  to  renovation  and  modernization,  the  expenditure
thereon along with its unamortized depreciable amount is charged prospectively over the revised / remaining useful
life determined by technical assessment.

Spares  parts  procured  along  with  the  Plant &  Machinery or subsequently which  are   capitalized  and  added  in the
carrying amount of such item are depreciated over the residual useful life of the related plant and machinery or their
useful life whichever is lower.

h)  Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value, after providing for obsolences, if any.

Cost of Raw  Materials  and  stores  &  spares  are  computed  on  FIFO  basis  and  cc)st of Finished  Goods  &  Goods  in
Process are computed on Weighted average basis.

Cost  of  Finished  Goods  and  Goods  in  Process  includes  direct  materials,  labour,  conversion  and  Proportion  of
manufacturing overheads incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Proceeds in respect of sales/disposal of raw materials is credited to the raw material purchases.

The by-products are valued at net realizable value.

i)  Borrowing Cost
Borrowing  costs  directly attributable to the  acquisition,
a substantial  period  of time to get ready for its intended
All  other borrowing  costs  are  expen§ed  in  the  peric
other  costs  that  the  company  incurs  in  connectio
exchange differences to the extent regarded as an a

production of an asset that necessarily takes
iitalised  as part of the cost of the asset.
Borrowing  costs  consist of interest and
f  funds.  Borrowing  cost  also  includes

9 costs.



ALOK FERRO ALLOYS  LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

j)  Income Taxes
Income tax expense  represents  the  sum  of current and  deferred tax.  Tax is  recognised  in  the  Statement  of Prorit
and  Loss,  except to the extent that it relates  to items  recognised directly in  equity or other comprehensive income.
In which case the tax is also recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.
Current tax
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount  expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance sheet date.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is  recognised  on  temporary differences  between the  carrying  amounts  of assets  and  liabilities  in the
financial statements and the ccirresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is  settled  or the  asset  realised,  based  on tax rates  (and tax laws)  that have  been  enacted  or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting  period. The carrying amount  of Deferred tax liabilities  and assets  are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period.

k)  Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are initially recorded at exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. At each
Balance  Sheet  date,   monetary  items  denominated  in  foreign  currency  are  translated  at  the  exchange  rates
prevailing on that date.

Exchange differences arising on translation or settlement of monetary items are recogni§ed as income or expenses
in the period in which they arise in the Statement of Profit and loss.

I)  Employee Benefits Expense
Short Term Employee Benefits
The  undiscounted  amount   of  short  term  employee  benefits  expected  to  be  paid  in  exchange  for  the  services
rendered by employees are recognised as an expense during the period when the employees render the services.

Post-Employment Benefits
_Defined  Contribution Plans_
A   defined   contribution   plan   is   a   post-employment   benefit   plan   under   which   the   Company   pays   specified
contributions to a separate entity. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Provident Fund and
Contributory Pension Fund. The Company's contribution is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and
Loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Defined Benefits Plans

The cost of the  defined  benefit  plan  and  other post-employment benefits  and the  present value of such  obligaticjn
are  determined  using  actuarial  valuations.  An  actuarial  valuation  involves  making  various  assumptions  that  may
differ from  actual  developments  in  the  future.  These  include  the  determination  of the  discount  rate,  future  salary
increases,  mortality  rates  and  future  pension  increases.  Due  to  the  complexities  involved  in  the  valuation  and  its
long-term  nature,  a defined  benefit obligation  is highly sensitive to  changes in these assumptions.  All  assumptions
are reviewed at each reporting date.

The company has  recognized the gratuity payable to the employees  as per the  Payment of Gratuity Act,1972. The
liability in respect of these benefits is calculated usirig the Projected Unit Credit Method and spread over the period
during which the benerit is expected to be derived from employees' services.

Re-measurement of defined  benefit plans  in respect of post-employment are charged to the  Other Comprehensive
Income.

•m)  Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions  are  recognised  when  the  Company has  a  present legal  or constructive  obligation  as  a  result of a  past
event  and  it  is  probable  that  an  outflow  of  resources  embodying  economic  benefits  will  be  required  to  settle  the
obligation  and  a  reliable  estimate  can  be  made  of the  amount  of the  obligation.  Such  provisions  are  determined
based on management estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. When the
Company  expects  some  or all  of a  provision to  be  reimbursed,  the  reimbursement is  recognised  as  a   asset only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024
lf  the  effect  of the  time  value  of  money  is  material,  provisions  are  discounted  using  a  ourrent  pre-tax  rate  that
reflects when appropriate,  the risks specific to the  liability. Vvhen  discounting is  used, the  increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities  are  disclosed  on the  basis  of judgment of managemenL  These  are reviewed at each  balance
sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the ourrent management estimate.   .

Contingent assets are not recognieed but are disclosed in the financial statements when inflow of economic benefits
is probable.

n)  Impairment of non-financial assets -property, plant and equipment
The  Company assesses  at each  reporting  date as to whether there is  any indication that any property,  plant and
equipment or group of assets, called cash generating units  (CGU) may be impaired.  If any such indication exists the
recoverable amount  of an  asset or CGU  is  estimated tcl  determine the extent of impairment.  if any. \/\/hen it is  not
possible  to  estimate  the  recoverable  amount   of  an  individual  asset  the  Company  estimates  the  recoverable
amount  of the CGu to which the asset belongs.

An  impairment  loss  is  recognised  in  the  Statement  of  Profit  and  Loss  to  the  extent,  asset's  carrying  amount
exceeds  its  recoverable amount  The  recoverable amount   is  higher of an  asset's fair value  less  cost  of disposal
and value in use. Value in use is  based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present  value using
pre-tax discount rate that reflects  current market assessments  of the time value  of money and  risk specific to the

The inipairmen{ loss recognised in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of
recoverable amount.

a)  Share capifa] and share premium
Ordinary  shares  are  classified  as  equfty.  Incremental  costs  directly  attributable  to  the  issue  of  new  shares  are
shown in equfty as a ded.uction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Par value  of the  equity share  is  recorded  as  share  capital  and  the  amount  received  in  excess  of the  par value  is
classified as share premium.

p)  Financial Instruments
Financial Assets
Initial recognition and measurement
AIl financial assets and liabilities  are initially recognked at falr value. Transaction costs that are directry attributable
to  the  acquisition  or  issue  of financial  assets  and  financial  liabilities,  which  are  not  at fair value  through   profit or
loss, are adjusted to th`e fair value on initial recognition.  Purchase and sale of financial assets are recognised using
trade date accounting.

Subsequent measLJrement
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
A financial asset is  measured  at amortised  cost if it is  held within a  business  model whose objective is to  hold the
asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments   of principal and interest on the principal amount  outstanding.

Financlal a88eto at falr value throuclh other comDrehengive Income /FvrocJ±
A financial  asset is  measured at  FVTOcl  if it is  held within a business  model whose objective  is  achieved  by both
collecting  contractual  cash  flows  and  selling  financial  assets  and the  contractual  terms  of the  financial  asset give
rise  on  specified  dates  to  cash  flows  that  are  solely  payments   of  principal  and  interest  on  the  principal  amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value throuqh  Profit or loss  (FVIpl_).

A financial asset whj`ch is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at F\/TPL.

Impairment of financial assets
ln accordance  with lnd AS  109. the Company uses .Expected Credit Loss'  tt=CL)  model, for evaluating impairmeut
of financial assets other than those measurecl at fair value through Ocl.

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:
-The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit

instrument that are possible within  12 months after the rep

- Full lifetime expected credit losses  (expected credit lo

of the financial instrument).
at result

lcAIFR«o.002172

t from those default events on the financial

possible default events over the life



{`*       a.    .+,.   '.Tr

ALOK FERRO ALLOYS LIMITED
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For  trade   receivables   Company   applies   'simplified   approach'   which   requires   expected   lifetime   losses   to   be
recognised  from  initial  recognition  of  the  receivables.  The  Company  uses  historical  default  rates  to  determine
impairment  loss  on  the  portfolto  of  trade  receivables.  At  every  reporting  date  these  historical  default  rates  are
reviewed and changes in the forward looking estimates are analysed.

Financial Liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
AIl  financial  liabilities  are  recognized  at  fair value  and  in  case  of  loans,  net  of  directly  attributable  cost.  Fees  of
recurring nature are directly recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as finance cost.

Subsequent measurement
Financial  liabilities  are carried  at  amortized  cost using  the  effective  interest method.  For trade and  other payables
maturing \^rithin one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short
maturity of these instruments.

Derecocinition of financial instruments
The Company derecognizes a.financial asset when the contractual  rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire  or it transfers  the financial  asset and  the  transfer qualifies  for derecognition  under  lnd  AS  109.  A financial
liability  (or  a  part  of  a  financial  Iiabilfty)  is  derecognized  from.the  Company's  Balance  Sheet  when  the  obligation
specified in the contract is discharged   or canceued or expires.

q)  Earnings Per Share
Basic  earnings  per  share  are  calculated  by  dividing  the  net  profit  or  loss  for  the  period  attributable  to  equfty
shareholders  by weighted  average  number of equfty shares  c]utstanding  during  the  period.  The weighted  average
number of equfty shares  outstanding  during the period are  adjusted for events of bonus  issue;  bonus  element in a
riciht issue to existina shareholders.

For the  purpose  of caloulating  diluted  earnings  per  share,  the  net  profit  or  loss  for the  year  attributable  to  equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

r)  Statement of Cash Flows
Cash and Cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows,  cash and cash  equivalents  includes cash on hand,
'deposits  held  at call  with  financial  institutic]ns,  other short-term,  highly  liquid  investments  with  original  maturities  of

three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk  of  changes  in  value,  and  bank  overdrafts.   However  for  Balance  Sheet.  presentation,   Bank  overdrafts  are
classified within borrowings in current liabilities.

Statement of Cash Flows  is  prepared in accordance with the  Indirect Method prescribed in the relevant Accounting
Standard.

2.2   KEY ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
The  preparation  of the  Compahy's  financial  statements  requires  management to  make judgiement,  estimates  and
assumptions  that  affect  the  reported  amount  of revenue,  expenses,  assets  and  liabilities  and  the  accompanying
disclosures.  Uncertainty  about these  assumptions  and  estimates  could  result  in  outcomes  that  require  a  material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods,

Depreciation / amortisation and useful lives of property plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment / intangible assets are depreciated / amortised over their estimated ilseful lives, after
taking  into  account  estimated  residual  value.  The  estimated  useful  lives  and  residual  values  of  the  assets  are
reviewed  annually  in  order  to  determine  the  amount   of  depreciation  /  amortisation   to  be  recorded  during  any
reporting period. The useful lives and residual values are based on the Company's historical experience with similar
assets  and  take  into  account  anticipated  technological  changes  a'nd  other  related  matters.  The  depreciation  /
amortisation  for future pericjds is revised if there are significant changes from previous estimates.

Recoverability of trade receivable
Judgements  are  required  in  assessing  the  recoverability of overdue trade  receivables  and  determining  whether a

provision  against  those  receivables  is  required.  Factors  considered   include  the  period  of  overdues,  the  amount
and timing of anticipated future payments and the
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Notes to fjnancia[ statements for the ear ended 31st March, 2024
Provisions
Provisions and liabilities  are recognized  in the period when it becomes   probable   that there will  be a future outflow
of resources  resulting  from  past  operations  or events  and  the  amount   of cash  outflc]w  can  be  reliably  estimated.
The timing  of recognitic]n  and quantification of the liability requires the application of judgement to existing facts and
circumstances. The carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and revised to take account
of changing facts and circumstances.

[mpairment of non-financial assets
The Company assesses at each reporting  date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.  If any
indication  exists,  the  Company  estimates  the  as.set's  recoverable  amount.  An  asset's  recoverable  amount   is  the
higher of an  asset's  or Cash  Generating  Units  (CGU's)  fair value  less  costs  of disposal  and  its value  in  use.  It is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those  from  other  assets  or  a  groups  of  assets.  Where  the  carrying  amount   of  an  asset  or  CGu  exceeds  its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered   impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In  assessing  value  in  use,  the  estimated  future  cash  flows  are  discounted  to  their  present   value  using  pre-tax
discount  rate  that  reflects  current  market  assessmen{s  of the  time  value  of  money  and  the  risks  specific  to  the
asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions  are taken into account, if no such
transactions  can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used,

Measurement of defined benefit obligations
The measurement of defined b.enefit and other post-employment benefits obligations are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in
the future. These  include the  determinatic)n  of the  discount rate,  future salary  increases,  mortality rates  and future
pension  increases.  Due  to  the  complexities  involved  in  the  valuation  and  its  long-term  nature,  a  defined  benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

2.3  New and amended standards
The  Ministry  of  Corporate  Affairs  has  notified  C.ompanies  (Indian  Accounting  Standard)  Amendment  Rules  2023
dated  March 31,  2023, to  amend the  existing  lnd AS viz.  Ind AS  12.1.  8,  34,109,101,102,103,107 &  115.  There
is no such impact of amendments which would have been applicable from April 1, 2023.
The   company   has   not   early   adopted   any   standards,   amendments   that   have   been   issued   but   are   not  yet
effective/notified.
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ALOK FERRO ALLOYS LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st Ivlarch, 2024

31.03.2024
€ in Lacs

7.  Non-current investments

Investments (Fair Valued through OCI)
Quoted eciuitv instruments, ful[v paid _u_I_
1920000 (1920000)  Equity Shares of Rs.5/-each in Godawari  Power & I;
0 (100000)  Equity Shares of Rs.1/-each in Tata Steel Ltd.

0 (50000)  Equity Shares of Rs.5/-each in Hindustan Copper Ltd.

0 (3060) Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each in Bharat Petroleum Corporatior
0 (62100)  Equity Shares of Rs.  5/-each in Oil & Natural Gas Co.

0 (274) Equity Shares of Rs. 5/-Oracle Finance Services Soft Limited

(0) 2628  India Energy Exchange  Ltd.

(0)  1974 Aiirbindo Pharma
Unciuoted equity instruments, ful[v paid up_
10000 (10000)  Equity Shares  of Rs.10/-each in Hira Energy Limited

975000 (975000)  Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each in Hira Ferro Alloys Limi

1250  (1250)  Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each in  Hira CSR Foundation

31.03.2023
€ in Laos

14,540.16                     6,698.88
104.50

49.18

10.43

93.80

19.39

3.35

4.64

4.40

3,622.91                     2,837.25

0.13                                 0.13

18,167.99                     9,825.94

Agreegate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof
Agreegate value of ur`quoted investment

Investment carried at fair value through other comprehensive income

14,540.16                     6,984.17

3,627.83                    2,841.78

18,167.99                      9,825.94

8.  Other financial assets

Unsecured, considered good unless
stated otherwise

Non-current bank balances (note-12)

Others
Interest accured on fixed deposits
Seciirity deposits with govt.  & others

9.   Other current assets

Non-current
31.03.2024         31.03.2023
€ in Lacs            € in Lacs

241.38                  262.92

0.09                       6.79

6.84                      4.84

248.30                 274.54

Non-current

Current
31.03.2024                31.03.2023
€ in Lacs

31.03.2024         31.03.2023
tin Lacs           € in Laos

Capital advances
Advances other than capital advances
Advance to Vendors
Prepaid expenses
Balance with revenue authorities

Total

11.00

10. Inventories (valuecl at lower of cost and net realizable value)

Raw Materials and components

Finished goods & By Products

Stores & spares

Note:
Details of inventories pledged against b

€ in Lacs

Current
31.03.2024                31.03.2023
tin Laos                 € in Laos

344.04                       440.44
42.43                            34.81

659.93
1,046.39

810.54

1,285.79

31.03.2024                31.03.2023
€ in Laos                 tin Lacs

5,117.92                      3,041.87

787.91                            193.13

447.21
6,353.04

note 17.

446.20
3,681.21



ALOK FERRO ALLOYS LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March,2024

11.  Trade receivables

Trade Receivables- unsecured, considered goods
Trade Receivalbes-Which have significat increase ln Credit Risk
Trade Receivalbes- Credit Impaired

Current
31.03.2024              31.03.2023
€ in Lacs               ¥ ln Laos

533.66                    266.48

533.66                    266.48

No  trade or other receivable  are  due from  directors or other officers  of the  company either severally or jointly with  any other person.  Nor
any  trade  or  other  receivable  are  due  from  firms  or  private  companies  respectively  in  which  any  director  is  a  partner,  a  director  or  a
member.

Trade receivables aaeina sched ule for the vear ended as on March 31. 2024 and March 31. 2023:
Particulars Out§tading for foI lowing periods from Due Date of Payment as on 31.03.2024

< 6 Months 6 Months-1Years
1 -2 Years 2-3 Years > 3 Years Total

(i)  UnCons disputed trade Receivalbes-ideredgoods
480.01 53.65

- 533.66

(ii) UWhicCredndisputed trade Receivalbes-hhavesignificatincreaseinitRisk
- -

(iii)  UCred ndisputed trade ReceivalbesitImpaired -

(iv)Cons sputed trade Receivalbes-deredgoods -

(v) diWhicCredsputed trade Receivalbes-hhavesignificatincreaseinitRisk

(vi)Cre isputed trade Receivalbes-itImpaired - -

Particular§ Outstading for fol lowing periods from Due Date of Payment as on 31.03.2023

< 6 Months 6 Months-1Years 1 -2 Years 2-3 Years > 3 Years Total

(i) Undisputed trade Receivalbes-Consideredgoods 212.83 53.65 266.48

(ii) UWhicCredndisputed trade Receivalbes-hhavesignificatincreaseinitRisk

(iii)  UCred ndisputed trade ReceivalbesitImpaired

(iv)Cons sputed trade Receivalbes-deredgoods -

(v) diWhicCredsp.uted trade Receivalbes-hhavesignificatincreaseinitRisk

(vi)Cre isputed trade Receivalbes-itImpaired - -

12.  Cash and bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
On current accounts
On OD accounts
Cash in hand

Other bank balances
Fixed deposit :
Deposits with original maturity
for more than  12 months

Less: Amount disclosed under
other financial assets (note-8)

Less:  Overdraft facilty from bank

Fixed deposits given as security
Fixed deposits agrregating to € 484.52 lacs  (previous year € 4

guarantee and pledged with govt.  Departments.

Non-current                                                  Current
31.03.2024                  31.03.2023                     31.03.2024             31.03.2023
€ in Lacs

241.38

241.38

241.38

€ in Lacs € in Lacs               € in Lacs

51,16                             1.83
298.88

1.30                           2.66
52.46                    303.36

262.92                         243.14                    231.94

262.92

262.92

243.14                    231.94

201.59



ALOK FERRO ALLOYS LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

31.03.2024                  31.03.2023
€ in Lacs €  in  Laos

13.  Share capital
Authorised
4800000  equity shares of €  10/-each

Issued,Subscribed and.fully paid-up
4786095 Equity Shares of €  10/-each fully paid-up

480.00

480.00

478.61

478.61

480.00

480.00

478.61

478.61

a.  Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Equity shares
31.03.2024

No.                    € in liacs
At the beginning of the period                         47,86,095                     478.61
Issue during the period

Outstanding at the end of the period 095                     478.61

31.03.2023
€ in  Laos

47,86,095

47,86,095

478.61

478.61

b. Terms/rights attached to eqility shares
The  company  has  only  one  class  of equity  shares  having  a  par value  of €  10/-per share.  Each  holder of
equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

In  the  event  of  liquidation  of  the  company,   the  holders  of  the  equity  shares  will  be  entitled  to  receive
remaining  assets  of  the  company,   after  distribtion  of  all  preferential  amounts.  The  distribution  will  be  in

proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

c.  Details of share held by holding company, subsidiary of holding company and associate of holding
Company.

31.03.2024                  31.03.2023
EqLiity shares of € 10 each fully paid
Godawari  Power & lspat Limited  (Holding Company)
Ardent Steel Private Limited   (Associate of holding company)
Hira Ferro Alloys  Ltd.  (Subsidiary of holding company)

No.
37,79,220
5,99,875
3,97,000

No.
37,79,220
5,99,875
3,97,000

I
d.  Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company:

31.03.2024
% of holding
in the class

31.03.2023

% of holding in
the class

Equity shares of € 10 each fully paid
Godawari power & Ispat Limited                   37,79,220                       78.96                  37,79,220
Ardent Steel Private Limited
Hira Ferro AIloys  Ltd.

5,99,875                        12.53                     5,99,875
3,97,000                           8.29

47,76,095                       99.79

e.  Shares held by promoters at 31  March 2024

3,97,000
47,76,095

Promoter Name No. of Shares % of total          % Change during
shares                     the year

Godawari Power & Ispat Limited 37,79,220 78.96
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ALOK FERRO ALLOYS LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

14.  Long-term borrowings

Other loans and advances
From financial institution  (secured)

The above amount includes
Secured borrowings
Amount disclosed under the head
"short term borrowings" (refer note 17)

Net amount

Non-current portion
31.03.2024          31,03.2023
€ in Lacs            € in Laos

77 5rf                   2:2.I Iii
i7.5M                  2:2.I n

77.5ri                    2:2.Jfi/

T].5n                 2:2ffri

Current maturities
31.03.2024
€ in Lacs

24.90
24.90

24.90

31.03.2023
€ in Lacs

23.81

(24.90)                            (23.81)

Terms & Conditions
a)    Other Loans & Advances are secured by hypothecation of vehicles.

15.  Provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity

Short-term
31.03.2024          31.03.2023
tin Lacs           tin Lacs

7.45                        6.86

7.45                        6.86

7.45                       6.86

16.  Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities)

Deferred Tax Liabilities

PPE : Impact of difference between tax depreciation and

depreciation charged for the financial reporting

On fair value of investments

Deferred Tax Assets

Provision for employee benefits

Effect of expenditure debited to profit & loss account in current year
Unabsorbed busine.ss losses and depreciation

Gross deferred tax assets

Net deferred tax assets/([iabi[ities)

Long-term
31.03.2024
€ in Lacs

46.02

46.02

46.02

31.03.2024
€ in Lacs

(266.00)

(2,182.28)

(2,448.28)

93.39

31.03.2023
€ in Laos

42.05

42.05

42.05

31.03.2023
€ in Lacs

(234.96)

(1,067.52)

(1,302.48)

(2,354.89)                    (1,286.65)



ALOK FERRO ALLOYS LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

17.  Short-term borrowings

Working Capital  Facility from bank (secured)
Loan from holding company (unsecured)

Current maturities of long-term borrowings (secured) (refer note-14)

The above amount includes

Secured borrowings

Unsecured borrowings

31.03.2024               31.03.2023
€ in Laos                 € in Laos

1,484.55                        1,007.97

800.00

24.90

2,309.45

23.81

1,031.79

1,509.45                       1,031.79

800.00

Working  Capital  Facility from  bank is  secured  by exclusive hypothecation  charge  on entire current assets  of the company both

present and future  and  exclusive  charge  by way of hypc>thecation  of plant  &  machineries  and  other movable fixed  assets.  It is
further  secured  by  equitable  mortgage  of  freehold  factory  land  &  buildind,  leasehold  factory  land  &  building  and  personal

guarantee of the director and their relatives. The cash credit is repayable on demand.

All  the  monthly.returns  submitted  to  banks  are  in  a.greement with  books  of  account  and  there  is  no  any  material  differences
between the books and returns submitted with bank.

18.  Trade payables

Trade payables
-Outstanding dues to micro & small enterprises             ,
-Outstanding dues of Creditors other than micro & small enterprises

31.03.2024                31.03.2023
€ in Lacs                 € in Lacs

1 1 .45

1,944.87
1,956.32

3.88
586.13
590.02

Trade pavables aqeinq schedule

Particurlars Outstading for Fol]owjng periods from due date of Payment as on 31.03.2024
< 1 Years 1 -2 Years 2-3 Years > 3 Years Total

(((( ) MSME 7.56 -
-

- 7.56
) Others 1,853.14 91 .74 1,944.87
ii) Disputed Dues- MSME - 3.88 3.88
v) Disputed Dues- Others - -

Total 1,860.70 - . 95.62 r 1,:9`56.32

Particurlars
Outstading for Following periods from due date of Payment as on 31.03.2023

< 1 Years 1 -2 Years 2-3 Years > 3 Years Total

(i)  MSME - - - -

586.13(ii)  Others 494.71 - 1.30 90.12

(iii)  Disputed Dues- MSME - - 3.88 3.88  I
(iv)  Disputed Dues- Others - - -

Total 494.71 - 1.30 94.01 590.02

19.  Other Financial  Liabilities
Provision for expenses

20.  Other Current Liabilities
Statutory dues payable
Provision for Renewal  Purchase Obligation
Interest on MSME payable

Advance from customer

31.03.2024                31.03.2023
€ in Lacs                 € in Lacs

31.03.2024 31.03.2023

39.92
72.98

0.04

267.46

380.40

14.76
291.74

215.64

522.14



ALOK FERRO ALLOYS LIMITED                   5
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

21.  Revenue from operations

Revenue from operations
Revenue from contracts with customers

Manufacturing Goods and  By-Products
Traded Goods

Other operating revenue
Scrap sales
Revenue from operations

2 023-24                          2022-23
€ in Lacs

9,589.33

31.57

€ in Lacs

6,391.08
520.60

911.68

Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
The Company recognises  revenue when control`over the  promised goods  or services  is transferred to the customer at an  amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods.

The Company has assessed and determined the following categories for disaggregation of revenue:

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
€ in Lacs € in Lacs

Revenue from contracts with customer - Sale of products/goods 9,589.33 6,911.68

Other operating revenues 31.57 -

Total Revenue from operations 9,620.89 6,911.68

India 9.351.63 4,222.76

Outside  India 269.27 2,688.92

Total Revenue from operations 9,620.89 6,911.68

Timing of revenue reco.gnition
9,620.89 6,911.68At a  point in  time

Total Revenue from operations 9,620.89 6,911.68

Contract balances
533.66 266.48Trade Receivables (refer note  11 )

Contract Liabilities
267.46 215.64Advance from customers (refer note 20)

Trade  receivables  are  non-interest  bearing  .and  are  generally on  terms  of advance  or credit  period  ranges  of 1  to  90
days.  In  March  2024,  €  Nil  (March  2023:  €  Nil)  was  recognised  as  provision  for  expected  credit  losses  on  trade
receivables.
Contract liabilities include short-term advances received from custom.ers to de'iver manufacturing goods.
Amount of revenue  recognised  from  amounts  inclilded  in  the  contract liabilities  at the  beginning  of the year €  165.64
laos (previous year €  156.53 lacs) and  performance obligations satisfied in current years € NIL (previous year €  NIL).

22.  Other Income

Interest Income on
Bank Deposits
Others

Dividend Income on
Non-Current investments
Profit on sale of property,  plant & equipment
Gain on sale of short term investments
Export incentive income
Foreign exchance fluctuation
Liabilities  no  longer required, written  back
RPO  provision reversal
Other non-operating income

23.  Cost of raw material and components consumed

Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add:  purchases including  procurement expenses (Net of Disposal)

Less : Inventory at the end of the year
Cost of raw material and components consumed

24.  (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories

Inventories at the end of the year
Finished goods and  by-prodL]cts

Inventories at the beginning of the yea
Finished goods and  by-products

Net (increase)/decrease in inventories

2023-24
€ in Lacs

787.91

2023 -24                          2022-23
€ in Lacs

32.62

80.89
2.46

• z2:::

224.46

385.25

€ in Lacs

25.18
17.85

179.62

32.39
27.82

101.21

1.21

385.29

20 23 -24                          2022-23
€ in Lacs

3,041.87
8,834.40

11,876.27
5,117.92

758.36

2022-23
€ in  Lacs

193.13
193.13

1,301.28

1 '301.28

108.15

€ in Laos
2,743.43
3,937.81
6,681.23
3,041.87

639.36

(Increase)/Decrease
€ in Lacs
2023-24

(594.78)
(594.78)

2022-23
1,108.15

1,108.15



ALOK FERRO ALLOYS LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

25.  Employee benefits expense

Salaries,  incentives & Managerial Remuneration
Contribution to provident and other fund
Gratuity Expenses (refer note 33)

26.  Finance Costs

Interest
-on over draft facility
- on Working Capital
- on others
Other borrowing cost

27.  Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation on property,  plant & equipment

Amortization of intangible assets

2023-24
€ in Lacs

648.46
32.35
11.49

692.29

2023-24
€ in Lacs

7.93
120.55
52.88
27.50

208.86

2023-24
€ in Lacs

213.25

1.08

214.33

2022-23
i in Lacs

533.46
31.69
10.92

576.07

2022-23
E in Laos

2022-23
€ in Lacs

136.10

1.11

137.20



ALOK FERRO ALLOYS LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

28.  Other Expenses

Consumption of stores and spares
Packing Material Consumed
Power & Fuel
Water Charges
Material Handling & Other manufacturing expenses
Insurance
Repairs and maintenance
- plant and machinery
- Buildings

- Others

Commission
- Other than Sole selling agents

Travelling and conveyance
Postage & Telephone Expenses
Legal and professional fees
Rates & Taxes
Vehicle Running & Maintenance Expenses
Payment to Auditor (Refer details below)
Cc)rporate Social Responsibility Expenses
Renewal Purchase Obligation
Profit/Loss on sale of property, plant & equipment
Exchange Gain/Loss on foreign Currency
Interest on  MSME
Security Charges
Selling  & forwarding  expenses
Miscellanecius  expenses

Payment to Auditor

As auditor :
Audit fee
Tax Audit fee

29.  Earnings per share (EPS)

Net profiv (Loss) as per Statement of profit and loss
Net profit /(Loss) for calculation of basic EPS & Diluted EPS

2023-24                      2022-23
€ in Laos

265.04
51.73

1,794.42
23.18

201.17
31.78

115.78

23.32
5.58

0.04
49.23
98.31
88.88

2,839.31

€ in Lacs

248.49
18.91

45.81
21.25

144.77
24.62

106.79
23.03

3.98

1,123.29

2023-24                    31.03.2023
€ in Lacs                  € in Laos

2023-24                      2022-23
€ in Lacs

(65.25)
(65.25)

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating Basic EPS                47,86,095

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating Diluted EPS              47,86,095

Basic & Diluted  EPS
-Basic earning per share                                                                                                                   (1.36)
-Diluted earning  per share                                                                                                                   (1.36)

€ in Laos
82.38
82.38

47,86,095

47,86,095

1.72
1.72

30.  Contingent Liabilities and assets not provided for, are in respect of :-
I.    CSTIVAT/Entry                             J                                € 28.29 lakhs (Previous Year€ 28.29 lakhs )

Central  Excise                                                                   €  11.34 lakhs  (Previous Year€  11.34 lakhs )

Income Tax                                                                      € 2.77 lakhs (Previous Year € 2.77 lakhs)

Electricity duty cess                                                       € 992.49 Iakhs (Previous Year € 958.71  lakhs)
11.    Claim agjnst the company ncit acknowledge as debt amounting to € 3.15  Lacs  ( Previc)us Year € 3.15

Laos.)

Ill.   Counter Guarantees given gainst the bank guarantees i`ssued by the companies banker agreegating to
€ 949.48 lacs (Previous Year € 354.12 laos).

Contingent Assets:
During  the  previcius  years,  the  compnay  has  fil
company for the  claim  of 226.862  MT  lost/theft/
sent for export. The claim assessement is in und

of  €  305  laos  with  the  insurance
iged  material  (Silico  Manganese)
rance company.



ALOK FERRO ALLOYS LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the ear ended 31st March, 2024

31. The company operates in a single segment that is manufacturing of ferro alloys products, hence
reportable segment.

there is only a single

32.  Related Party Disclosures:

a)    Related parties and nature of relationship where control exists:-
a\ Holding comoanv                                                    b) Subsidiaries of Holding company
-Godawari Power & lspat Ltd.  (w.e.f. 28.06.2022 -Hira Ferro AHoys Limited (w.e.f. 29.09.2021)

c` I(ev Manaciement Personna]
rshri vinay Agarwal                                  rshri T Bose (resigned w.e.f. 08.112022)
rshri Ajay Dubey                                         rshri Y C Rao (appointed w.e.f.  o8.11.2022)

b)    Transactions with Related parties:                                                                                                                         (€ [n Lacs)

Particular of Transactions Key ManagerialPerson Total

2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23
Remuneration Paid 155.81 92.28 155.81 92.28

Outstanding
Payable 16.79 1.74 16.79 1.74

Particular of Transactions Holding Company Total

2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23
Purchase of Materials and Others 35.48 58.17 35.48 58.17

Sale of Goods 107.09 485.16 107.09 485.16

Loan Taken 800.00 800.00 -

Interest paid 33.02 - 33.02

Dividend Received 768.00 - 768.00
Outstandinq
Payable/Receivable 800.00 800.00 -

Particular of Transactions Subsidiaries of HoldingComDanv Total

2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23
Purchase of Materials and others 1740.63 916.14 1740.63 916.14

Sale of Goods 437.24 1775.98 437.24 1,775.98

Outstanding
Payable/Receivable -

c)   Disclosure in  respect of transactions which  are more than  10% of the total transactions  of the same type with
related parties during the year                                                                                                                  (€ in Laos)

Purchase of Materials and Others
2023-24 2022-23

13.87 11.90Godawari Power and lspat Ltd
Hira Ferro Alloys Ltd 1740.63 916.14

R.R.  Ispat (A unit of GPIL) 21.61 46.27
1776.11 974.3,1

Sale of Goods
107.09 485.16Godawari Power and lspat Ltd

Hira  Ferro Alloys  Ltd 437.24 1,775.98
544.32 2,261.14

Loan Tat(en
800.00Godawari Power and lspat LtdInterestoaid
800.00 -

33.02Godawari Power and lspat LtdDividendReceived
33.02

768.00 -Godawari Pcjwer and lspat LtdRemunerationPaid
768.00 -

144.00 114.00Shri Vinay Agrawal

ife;r{:p:o;;a;::`nd[spatLtd                  §jzcN#§i:;}S§£

11.81 11.15

155.81 125.15

15.880.91800.00
1.74

816.79 1.74'seAccaN@



ALOK FERRO ALLOYS  LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

33.   DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED  BY INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARD  (lnd AS)  19  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS:
a.     Defined contribution plan:

The  Company  has  certain  defi`ned  contribution  plans  viz.  provident fund  .  Contributions  are  made to  provident fund  in
India  for  employees  at  the  rate  of  12%  of. basic  salary  as  per regulations.  The  contributions  are  made  to  registered
provident fund administered by the government. The obligation  of the  Company is  limited to the amount contributed and
it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation.

An amount of € 32.35 laos (P.Y. € 31.69 laos) is recognised as an expenses and included in employee benefit expense
as under the following defined contribution plans  (Refer Note no 25).

b.     Defined benefit plan:
Gratuity:
The Gratuity scheme is a final salary defined benefit plan that provides for a lump sum  payment made on exit either by
way of retirement, death, disability or voluntary withdrawal. The benefits are defined on the basis of final salary and the

period  of  service  and  paid  as  lump  sum  at  exit.  Benefits  provided  under  this  plan  is  as  per the  requirement  of the
Payment of Gratuity Act,  1972. The scheme is unfunded.

i                                                                    f.    *-r  l±,--t'jt`fe!                      ;_   ir` _=Jr     ~==|.     '.  c*rf6`               ,_s€ue*trfe\#¥€?;p±±=±.+i-.+it-Glfatu ty€#  .-'\   d`--,,

§Particulars                                                      ,=`;|ti                             .            i    „.:        <            i.,i;i   5::,i_;¥.,:t*..
;  -p  rf-i|2023|24?     `^:_:  L`r.2o'22L23''   `J  (N6'hijEuh`ded)`

(NbnTFuhded),
I      Change in present value of defined benefit obiligation during the year:

Present value of defined  benefit obiligation at the beginning of the year
Interest Cost
Current Service Cost
Past Service Cost
Benefit paid directly by employer
Acturial Changes arising from changes in financial assumption
Acturial Changes arising from changes iri expirence assumption
Present value of defined benefit obiligation at the end of the year

11     Change in fairvalue of plan assets during the year:
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year
Contribution paid by the employer
Benefit paid from the fund
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

Ill     Net asset/ (liability) recognised in the balance sheet:
Present Valur of defined benefit obiligation at the end of the year
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year
Net asset / (liability) recognised in the balance sheet:

Net asset / (liability) -Current
Net asset / (liability) - Non Current

lv    Expenses recognized in the statemerit of profit and loss for the year:
Current Service Cost
Interest Cost on benefit obiligation (Net)
Total expenses included in employee benefits exxpenses

V     Recognized in other comprehensive income for the year:
Acturial Changes arising from changes in financial assumption
Acturial Changes arising from changes in expirence assumption
R.ecognized in other comprehensive income for the year:

48.90                   40.35
3.62                      2.86
7.87                        8.06

(5.21)
1.88

(3.58)
53.48

(1.16)

(0.81)

(0.39)
48.90

(1.16)

1.16



ALOK FERRO ALLOYS  LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the ear ended 31st March, 2024

34.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

The  Company's  principal  financial  liabilities  comprise  of loans  and  borrowings,  trade  payables  and  other financial
liabilities.  The  main  purpose  of these  financial  liabilities  is-  to  finance  the  Company's  operations.  The  Company's

principal  financial  assets  include  trade  and  other receivables,  and  cash  and  short-term  deposits  that derive  directly
from its operations. The Company also enters into derivative contracts.

The Company is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
- Credit risk
-Liquidity risk

-Interest r'ate risk

- Currency risk
- Price risk

The  Company's  board  of directors  has  overall  responsibility  for.the  establishment and  oversight of the  company's
risk management framework.This  note presents information about the risks associated with its financial instruments,
the   Company's   objectives,    policies   and   processes   for   measuring   and   managing   risk,   and   the   Company's
manaaement of caoi{al.
Credit Risk
The Company is  exposed  to  credit risk as  a  result of the  risk of counterparties  non  performance or default on their
obligations.  The  Company's  exposure  to  credit  risk  primarily  relates  to  investments  in  fixed  deposits  with  banks,
accounts receivable and cash and  cash equivalents. The C.ompany monitors and  limits its exposure to credit risk on
a  continuous  basis.  The  Company's  credit risk associated with  accounts  receivable  is  primarily related  to  party  not
able to settle their ob]oigation as  agreed. To  manage this the  Company periodically reviews  the finanial  reliability of
its  customers,  taking  into  account  the  financial  condition,  current  economic  trends  and  analysis  of  historical  bad
debts and ageing of accounts receivables.

Trade receivables
Trade  receivables  represent  the  most  significant  exposure  to  credit  risk  and  are  stated  after  an  allowance  for
impairment and expected credit loss.

Bank, Cash and cash equivalents
Bank,  Cash and  cash  equivalents  comprise cash  in  hand and deposits which are  readily convertible to  cash.  These
are subj.ect to insignificant risk of change in value or credit risk.

The carrying amount of financial assets  represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposute to credit
risk at the reporting date vyas:

€ in Lacs
31 -Mar-24                           31 -`Mar-`23

Trade receivables
Bank, Cash and cash equivalents

[mpairment losses

Trade receivables (measured under life time excepted credit loss model)
Opening  balance
Provided during the year
Closing balance

Ageing analysis

Upto 3 months
3-6 months
More than 6 months

533.66
94.02

31-Mar-24

266.48
535.30

31-Mar-23

31 -Mar-24                         31 -Mar-23
480.01

53.65

212.83

53.,65
533.66                                  266.48
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Liquidity risk
The  Company  is  exposed  to  liquidity  risk  related  to  its  ability  to  fund  its  obligations  as  they  become  due.  The
Company  monitors  and  manages  its  liquidity  risk  to  ensure  access  to  sufficient  funds  to  meet  operational  and
financial  requirements.  The  Company  has  access  to  credit  facilities  and  debt  capital  markets  and  monitors  cash
balances daily.  In relation to the Company's liquidity risk, the Company's policy is to ensure, as far as possible, that it
will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due,  under both  normal and stressed conditions as they
fall  due while  minimizing  finance  costs, without incurring  unacceptable  losses  or risking  damage to the  Company's
reputation.
Financing arrangements

The company has access to following  undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting                             € /.n Laos
31.Mar-24                         31 -Mar-23

Over draft facilities from banks                                                                                                                     15.45

Maturities of financial liabilities
The contractual undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities are as follows:

Less than 1
As at 31  March 2024 <1 -5 years More than 5

Borrowings
Trade payables
Other financial liabi[ities

2,309.45                   77.57 2,387.02

1,956.32                                                                                                1,956.32
70.32 70.32

336.10                   77.57 4 413.66

Lessthanl        ...       ___       Morethan5
As at 31  March 2023 <1 -5 years

Borrowings
Trade payables
Other financial  liabilities

1.031.79                     22.07
590.02

63.87

1,053.86
590.02

63.87

685.68                   22.07 1 707.75

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that an upward movement in the interest rate would adversley effect the borrowing cost of
the company.  The  Company is  exposed  tQ long  term  and  short-term  borrowings,  Commercial  Paper Program.  The
Company manages interest rate risk by monitoring its mix of fixed and floating  rate instruments,  and taking action as
necessary to maintain an appropriate balance.

The exposure of the Company's borrowings to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

a) Interest rate risk exposure 31 -Mar-24                 31 -Mar-23

¥jaxr:ab::t:a:eo rbr:#:nwgj:g s                                                                                                 1 '€ §£ : :;                       "23 : ::
b) Sensitivity analysis

Profit or loss estimate to higher/lower interest rate expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.
rofit after taxact on

31 -Mar-24                 31 -Mar-23

: ::::::: ::i::-: inec::eaasseebbyy77°obbaas::sPp°::its                                                                          (; 8.. 3: )                            ( 7;.°o66)

FOREX EXPOSURE RISK

The   Company   operates   internationally   and   portion   of   the   business   is   transacted   in   several   currencies   and
consequently  the  Company  is  exposed  to  foreign  exchange  risk  through  purchases  from  overseas  suppliers  in
`/ori^iic fr`rainn  riirranr`iae

Foreign   currency  exchange   rate   exposure   is   partly   balanced   by   hedging   of  exposure   by  forward   contract  of

purchasing of goods in the respective currencies.

currency  transactions  and  the  Company
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PARTICULARS
Receivable

Currency in Lacs
Currency

USD
31-Mar-24

3.93

Profit or loss estimate to higher/lower as a result of changes in foreign exchange rates-

lnd

Foreign exchange rates -increase by 1 %
Foreign exchange rates -decrease by 1 %

act on

31-Mar-23
0.64

€ in Laos
rofit after tax

31 -Mar-24                 31 -Mar-23
2.29

(2.29)

0.38

(0.38)

35.  CAPITAL MANAGEIVIENT

The Company's main obj.ectives when managing capital are to:
-ensure  sufficient liquidity  is  available.(either through  cash  and  cash  equivalents,  investments  or committed  credit

facilities) to meet    the needs of the business;
'  ensure compliance with covenants related to its credit facilities; and
•  minimize finance costs while taking  into consideration  current and future industry,  market and  economic risks  and

conditions.
•  safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern
•  to  maihtain  an  efficient  mix  of  debt  and  equity  funding  thlls  achieving  an  optimal  capital  structure  and  cost  of

The..Bbard of Directors has `the primat`/ responsibility to maintain a strong capital base and reduce the cost of capital
through prudent management of deployed funds and  le.veraging opportunities in  domestic and  international financial
markets  so  as  to  maintain   investor,   creditor  and   market  confidence  and  to  sustain  future  development  of  the
business.

For the purpose of Company's capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves. The
Company  manages  its  capital  structure  in  light  cif  changes  in  the  economic  and  regulatory  environment  and  the
requirements of the financial coven-ants.

The  Company manages  its  capital  on  ;.he  basis  of net debt to  equity ratio which  is  net debt (total  borrowings  r`et of
cash and cash equivalents) divided by total equity

€  in Lacs
31  March               31  March 2023

Total debt
Less :  Bank,  Cash and cash equivalent
Net 'debt

Total equity
Net debt to equity ratio

2024
2,387.02

94.02
2,293.00

23,415.16
0.10

1,053.86
535.30
518.56

15,903.78
0.03

During  the  year  the  company  has  complied  with  major  covenants  of  the  terms  of  sanction  of  the  loan  facilities
throughout the year.



ALOK FEP`RO ALLOYS LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for

"i'';;,;.

31st March, 2024

36.   FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS -ACCOUNTING CLASSIFICATIONS AND FAIR VALUE MEASuREMENTS
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

1.  Fair value  of cash  and  short-term  deposits,  trade  and  other  short  term  receivables,  trade  payables,  other current  liabilities,
short term  loans  from  banks  and  other financial  institutions  approximate their carrying  amounts  largely  due to  the  short-term
maturities of these instruments.

2.  Financial  instruments  with  fixed  and  `/ariable  interest  rates  are  evaluated  by  the  Company  based  on  parameters  such  as
interest rates and individual  credit worthiness of the counter party.  Based on this  evaluation,  allowances  are taken to account
for the expected losses of these receivables.

The  Company uses the following  hierarchy  for determining  and  disclosing  the fair value  of financial  instruments  by valuation
t.echniq:lie:

Level  1  : quoted (unadjusted)prices in active markets fo,r ideiitical assets or liabilities

Level 2  :  other techniques for which  all  iriputs which  have  a ignificant effect on  the  recorded  fair valueare  observable,  either
directly of indirectly

Level  3  :  techniques  which  use  inputs  that  have  a  significant  effect  on  the  recorded  fair  value  that  are  not  based  on
observable market data

Carrying amount                                                                € /.n Laos

As at 31.03.2024           Level 1             Level 2            Level 3
Financial assets at amor{ised cost:
Trade receivables
Other financial assets
Bank, Cash and bank balances

533.66
251.17

94.02
878.84

Financial assets at fair value through`other comprehensive income:
Investments
Total
Firiancial Iia.bilities at amortised cost:
Long term borrowings
Short term borrowings
Trade payables
Other financial  liabilities
Total

Financial assets at amortised cost:
Trade receivables
Other financial assets
Bank, Cash and bank balances

18167.99          14540.16            3627.83
18167.99         14540.16            3627.83

77.57
2309.45
1956.32

7.46
4350.80

Carrying amount
As at 31.03.2023           Level 1

266.48
277.41
535.30

€  in Laos
Level 2            Level 3

1079.19
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income:
Investments
Total
Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
Long term borrowings
Short term borrowings
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities

Total

9825.94            6984.17            2841.78
9825.94           6984.17           2841.78

22.07
1031.79
590.02
522.14

2166.02

During  the  reporting  period  ending  31st  March,  2024  and  31st  March,  2023,  there  were  no  transfers  between  Level  1\  and
Level 2 fair value measurements.
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37.  The  Company  has  identified  the  amount  due  to  Micro,  Small  and  Medium  Enterprises  under The  Micro,  Small  and  Medium
Enterprises Development Act,2006  (MSMED Act) as at 31st March,2024.

(¥[n lacs'
2023-24 2022-23

d  the  interest  due thereon  remaining  unpaid  to  any supplier as  ataidfytheConipanyalongwiththeamountsofthepaymentmade

11,450.040.000.000.040.00 3.880.000.000.000.000.00

a appointed day for the year ending 31st March,2024ueandpayablefortheperiodofdelayinmakingpayment (beyond

the year)

3crued and remaining unpaid for the year ending 31st March,2024erestremainingdueandpayablefortheearlieryears.

i)         The  principal  amount
31st March,2024

Principal Amount

Interest

ii)       The amountof interest p
to the supplier beyond

The amount of interest du
the appointed day during

The amount of interest ac

v)       Theamountoffurtherint

The company has not provided any i!iterest on the amount payable to one of the Micro,  Small and  Medium Enterprises asNote
there is a quality dispute with the party.

38.   Financial Ratios
particulats Numerator Denominator Asat31.03.2024 Asat31.03.2023 % Variance

1.  Current Ratio Current Assets Current 1.70 2.64 -35.44

The curirent ratio indicates a company'soverallliquidityposition.Itiswidelyused.bybanksinmakingdecisionsregardingtheadvancingofworkingcapitalcredittotheirclients. Liabilities

2.  Debt-Equity Ratio                         € Total Debt Total 0.10 0.07 53.84                ,r.:1I

Debt-to-equity ratio compares a` Shareholders'
Company's total debt to shareholders Equity
equity.  Both of these numbers can befoundinaCompany'sbalancesheet.

3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio Net Profit after Interest + 1.18 0.71 66.05
Debt Service coverage ratio is used to taxes + Principal
analyse the firm's ability to pay-off current depreciation and Repayments
interest and instalments. amortizations +Interest-profitonsaleofPPE&Investmentsetc.

4.  Return on Equity Ratio Net Profits after A`,erage -0.33% 0.52% -164.16

lt measures the profitability of equity funds taxes    :.,``®.`-. Shareholders'
invested in the Company. The ratiorevealshowprofitabilityoftheequity-holders'fundshavebeenutilizedbytheCompany.Italsomeasuresthepercentagereturngeneratedtoequity-holders. EquityGHA"rfediife-.g,c.f.

_ a`'    -.{ErsV,\'nL-I-       I =`<SEDNqERE£
-_-___1!
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5.  Inventory turnover ratio Sales Average 19.61 9.25 112.04

This ratio also known as'stock turnoverratioanditestablishestherelationshipbetweenthecostofgoodssoldduringtheperiodorsalesduringtheperiodandaverageinventoryheldduringtheperiod.ltmeasurestheefficiencywithwhichaCompanyutilizesormanagesitsInventory. Inventory

6. Trade Receivables turnover ratio Net Credit Sales Avearge Trade 24.05 33.81 -28.87

It measures the efficiency at which thecompanyismanagingtherec6ivables. Receivables

7. Trade payables turnover ratio Net credit Average Trade 6.94 3.98 74.49
lt indicates the number of times sundrycreditorshavebeenpaidduringaperiod.ltiscalculatedtojudgetherequirementsofcashforpayingsundrycreditors.Itiscalculatedbydividingthenetcreditpurchasesbyaveragecreditors. purchases payables

8. Net capital turnover ratio Net Sales Working 2.89 1.90 51.93

lt indicates a company'sJeffectiveness  inusingitsworkingcapital. Capital

9.  Net profit ratioltmeasurestherelationship between netprofitandsalesofthebusiness. Net Profit Net Sales -0.68% 1.19% -156.90

10.  Return on Capital employed Earning before Tangible Net 0.34% 1.19% -71.28

Return on capital employed indicates the interest and taxes Worth + Total
ability of a company's management to Debt +
generate returns for both the debt holders Deferred Tax
and the equity holders. Higher the ratio,moreefficientlyisthecapitalbeingemployedbythecompanytogeneratereturns. Liabilities

Particulats Numerator Denominator Asat31.03.2024 Asat31.03.2023 %,/ariaii=- I

11.  Return on investment Income generated Time weighted 53.97% I :y5/0/o
__I-833.08

Return on investment (Rol) is a financialratiousedtocalculatethebenefitaninvestorwillreceiveinrelationtotheirInvestmentcost.Thehighertheratio,thegreaterthebenefitearned.TheoneofwidelyusedmethodisTimeWeightedRateofReturn(T\/\/RR)andthesame-shouldbefo[lowedtocalculateF301.Itadjuststhereturnforthetimingofinvestmentcashflowsanditsformula/method6fcalculationiscommonlyavailable.
from investments-Quoted-Unquoted averageinvestments

28% 320/a -14.16

Note :  Reasons for variance for more than or less than 25%
i. Variance in debt equity ratio  is mainly on  account of incre
service coverage ratio is om account of repayment
ii. Variance in Return on equity,  net profit ratio and ret
the year as compared to preceding financial `/ear.
jii. Variance in Net capital turnover ratio is on accoun
iv. Variance in Return on investment depends upon (
Company.

borrowings during the year and decrease in debt

mainly on account of decrease in profit during

compared to preceding financial year.
f investment and dividend received by the
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39.  Tax expense

i) Tax expense recognised in statemeiit of profit or loss
a)      Currenttax

lncome Tax for the period

b)      Deferredtax
Origination of temporary differences

Total Tax expense

ii) Tax recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans
Fair value of financial assets

iii) Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit
Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations
Expected Tax Rate
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate
Expense not allowed for tax purpose
Other temporary differences
Effective income tax rate
Income tax reported in the statement of profit and loss

2023-24               2022-23

4.56

4.56

(46.96)                        33.96

46.96                      38.52

0.43                             0.30
1,114.78                           69.65

115.21                          69.95`

(112.23)                       120.90
25.17%                     25.170/o

(28.25)                        30..43
6.54

(18.72)                               1.55
41.85                           31.86

-46.96                         38.52

40.  The  company has  not undertaken  any transactions with  companies  struck off under section 248  of the  Companies Act 2013  or
section 560 of Companies Act 1956 during the current year or in previous year.

41.   None of the banks, financial institutions or other lenders from whom the company has borrowed funds has declared the company
as a wilful defaulter at any time during the current  year or in previous year.

42.  All the transactions are recorded  in the  books  of accounts and there was  no  income that has been  surrendered  or disclosed as
income  during  the  year  in  the  tax  assessments  under  the  Income  Tax  Act,1961.  Also  there  was  no  previously  unrecorded
income and related assets which has been recorded in the books of account during the year.

43,   No  proceedings  have  been   initiated   or  pending  agair\st  the  company  for  holding  any  benami   property  under  the  Benami
Transactions (Prohibitiori) Act,  1988 (45 of 198.8) and rules made thereunder.

44.  The  company  has  not  .advanced   or  loaned   or  invested  funds    to  any  other  persons  or  entities,   ilicluding  foreign   entities

(Intermediaries) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the  Intermediary shall directly or indirectly
lend  or  invest  in  other  persons  or  entities  identified  in  any  manner  whatsoever  by  or  on  behalf  of  the  company  (ultimate
Beneficiaries)  or   provide  any guarantee,  secinrity or the  like to or on  behalf of the  Ultimate  Beneficiaries.  Further,  the  company
has  not  received  any  fund  from  any  persons  or  entities,   including  foreigri  e.ntities  (Funding  Party)  with  the  understanding   ,
whether recorded  in writing  or otherwise,  that the  company shall   directly or indirectly lend  or invest in  other persons  or entities
identified  in  any  manner whatsoever  by  or  on  behalf of the  Funding  Party  (Ultimate  Beneficiaries)  or   provide  any  guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

45.  The company does not have investment in subsidiary companies and accordingly the disclosure as to whether the company h?s
complied with the number of layers  of companies  pres.cribed  under clause (87)  of section  2 of the Act read with the Companies

(Restriction on number of Layers)  Rules, 2017 is not applicable.

46.  The company has neither traded nor investeo' in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
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47.   No  scheme  of  compromise  or  arrangement  has  been  proposeci  between  the  company  &  its  members  or  the  company  &  its
creditors under section 230 of the Companies Act 2013  ("The Act")  and accordingly the disclosure as to whether the  scheme  of
compromise or arrangement has been appl`oved or not by the  competent authority in terms of provisions of  sections 230 to 237
of the Act is not applicable.

48.  The  Code  on  Social  Security,  2020  (`Code')  relating  to  employee  benefits  during  employment  and  post  employment  benefits
r9ceived  Presidential  assent  in  September 2020.  The  Code  has  been  published  in  the  Gazette  of  India.  However,  the  date  on
which the Code will come in to effect has not been notified. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into
effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

49.  Previous year figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary.

For Opsinghania & Co.
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